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          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Good morning, and

          3  welcome to today's hearing of the City Council's

          4  Committee on Transportation. My name is John Liu and

          5  I am privileged to Chair this Committee and this

          6  hearing.

          7                 This Committee has been convened for

          8  the purpose of considering a voting on Proposed

          9  Intro. No. 305- A related to awnings.  Intro. No.

         10  305, the previous version of this Bill, was heard by

         11  this Committee on April 15th of this year, along

         12  with another Bill, Intro. No. 365.  At that time,

         13  both Bills sought to amend the law with relation to

         14  both awnings and canopies. Following extensive

         15  testimony from the public and from representatives

         16  of both the Department of Transportation and the

         17  Department of Buildings, it became apparent that the

         18  problem, that both pieces of legislation sought to

         19  address and correct, is confined solely to awnings.

         20  And for that reason, and to foster efficiency, the

         21  two bills have been merged into Proposed Intro.

         22  305- A, and references to canopies have been

         23  deleted.

         24                 The rash of summonses that prompted

         25  this legislative initiative have been exclusively

                                                            4

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  issued by the Department of Buildings solely for

          3  awnings violations.  The typical summons carries

          4  unusually costly fines, often for $2,500 or more,

          5  and has been primarily issued for failure to have an

          6  awning permit, or for having impermissible lettering

          7  or commercial copy on an awning. Many of these

          8  summonses have recently been issued to property

          9  owners, primarily small business owners, for awnings

         10  conditions that have existed in their current forms

         11  for many years, and that have never been summonsed

         12  before.  Because of this change in the long existing

         13  status quo, the Council does not believe that it is

         14  fair to allow the continued imposition of large

         15  fines for these types of awnings violations without

         16  allowing property owners the opportunity to cure the

         17  violation for which they were cited.  The six- month

         18  moratorium on imposition of fines for specified non

         19  safety related awnings violations contained in the

         20  proposed legislation before this Committee today is

         21  meant to accomplish several purposes.

         22                 First and foremost, the six- month

         23  period should take critical financial pressure off

         24  small business owners that have been hit with large

         25  fines that have actually threatened the economic
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          2  viability of their businesses.

          3                 Second, the six- month period allows

          4  a period of education whereby, summonses are still

          5  issued informing property owners why their awnings

          6  are in violation, but property owners are afforded

          7  adequate time to bring the awnings into compliance

          8  without having a fine imposed.  It is important to

          9  note that the provisions of this Bill are

         10  prospective only, meaning that the six- month period

         11  where summonses may be issued but no fines imposed

         12  will apply only to summonses issued on or after the

         13  effective date of the provisions of this

         14  legislation.

         15                 Finally, the six- month period allows

         16  the Council the opportunity to investigate whether

         17  the current legal strictures pertaining to writing,

         18  commercial copy, and lettering height on awnings is

         19  still relevant and appropriate.

         20                 Before hearing testimony on Proposed

         21  Intro. No. 305 A, I would like to take a moment to

         22  lend a bit of perspective to this issue.  In the

         23  wake of September 11th, and the economic recession

         24  that has hit this City very hard, it is

         25  inconceivable that the City should be taking any
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          2  initiative, no matter how minor, that has the effect

          3  of seriously discouraging economic activity, and

          4  that is precisely the effect that this legislation

          5  is meant to address.  The Council has recognized the

          6  disincentive to economic activity that these awnings

          7  summonses have had on small businesses and the

          8  Council, through this legislation, seeks to help

          9  these small businesses survive and hopefully thrive.

         10    We are taking action through this legislation to

         11  help the small businesses that ultimately serve our

         12  communities, the despaired communities throughout

         13  the City of New York, and doing so without

         14  compromising, in any way, public safety.

         15                 In the future, we also reserve the

         16  right to consider the original Bill, Intro. No. 365-

         17  A with 365, which had been introduced by Council

         18  Member Weprin, and I know that he can address that

         19  briefly in a moment.  Intro. 305 was originally

         20  introduced by Council Member Monserrate,  Hiram

         21  Monserrate, and I want to commend both Council

         22  Members Monserrate and Weprin for their leadership

         23  in putting forth these legislative initiatives.

         24  At this time, we have an opening statement from

         25  Council Members Weprin and then Monserrate, and we

                                                            7

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  have been joined by Committee Members Sara Gonzalez

          3  from Brooklyn, Oliver Koppell from the Bronx, Joe

          4  Addabbo from Queens, Miquel Martinez from Manhattan,

          5  Diana Reyna from Brooklyn, and Helen Sears from

          6  Queens.  Council Member Monserrate.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Thank you

          8  very much, Mr. Chair, and today we, as I was quoted

          9  saying yesterday the Council has heard the calling

         10  and we have responded.  Let me say, that in November

         11  of last year, when I introduced this Bill I had

         12  already received close to 100 complaints from

         13  constituents in my district, in Corona, and in

         14  Jackson Heights who had to forcibly remove awnings

         15  from their places of businesses, truly providing a

         16  economic hardship to them and to the vitality of our

         17  communities throughout this City.  So much has been

         18  said about how these entrepreneurs and small

         19  shopkeepers are an economic engine to our City, so

         20  many of them also represented the American Dream for

         21  so many New Yorkers, many of them immigrants who

         22  come here and pedal their wares and services, and

         23  provide so much to our City and to our economy.

         24  This crackdown or enforcement which according to the

         25  statistic that I have viewed, doubled from one year
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          2  to the next, I believe it was clearly unfair, in

          3  fact, in 1961 when this Bill was originally enacted

          4  or these regulations, I was not even born yet.

          5  Seeing the real need that there was reform, and to

          6  amend the provisions, either by the Planning

          7  Commission or Planning and Regulations Commission,

          8  looking forward, as we look forward Sara and Ollie,

          9  I am proud that this Bill has been stewarded through

         10  by the Chairman of this Committee, and I also want

         11  to thank the co- sponsors of the Bill.  I also want

         12  to thank my colleague, David Weprin who will also

         13  introduce a Bill that would remedy some of these,

         14  and I know he will be speaking momentarily, but the

         15  bottom line is that we desperately needed reform.

         16  It is unfortunate that those that have already had

         17  to pay, what I believe is an unjust fine, have had

         18  to pay it, but as we move forward, we look to make a

         19  bad situation much better, and I look forward to

         20  working with the Administration and the Buildings

         21  Department and DOT, to ensure that there will always

         22  be equity and a way in which there can be prosperity

         23  and safety and compliance with the regulations.

         24                 So, Mr. Chair, thank you very much,

         25  and thank you in behalf of all the small business

                                                            9

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  owners throughout this City who will now have a

          3  protection, who will now have a chance to catch

          4  their breath and ensure that they are in compliance.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you Council

          6  member Monserrate, and an opening statement about

          7  the legislation from Council member Weprin.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  Thank you

          9  Chairman Liu.  Let me tell you about a group of

         10  business people in my district, one owns a pizza

         11  shop, the other a bagel store, the third is an

         12  optometrist, and the others sell books, appliances,

         13  while some are hairdressers and real estate brokers.

         14    Many of them are fixtures in the community and

         15  have been there for more than twenty years.  Were I

         16  an economist, I would give them the technical

         17  designation of Mom and Pop stores.  They have a

         18  staff of two or three, usually made up of family

         19  members.  This group contacted me because they had

         20  received violations regarding awning signs, which

         21  they had placed in front of their stores.

         22                 This was new to me, I assumed that

         23  the violations cited dangerous conditions regarding

         24  these signs, such as not being securely fastened to

         25  the storefront, or having loose electrical wires
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          2  hanging from their frames.  I met with these store

          3  owners to investigate their complaints, and was

          4  truly astounded by what I found out to be

          5  violations.  One storeowner received such a

          6  violation because his telephone number appeared on

          7  the awning.  A convenience store owner was cited for

          8  having the hours of operations posted on the awning.

          9    The bagel store received a violation for having a

         10  picture of a bagel on its awning, and the letters of

         11  the sign were more than 12 inches high.  These were

         12  the violations, and some of them totaled in excess

         13  of $2,500.  This is real, it is not creative

         14  writing, it really happened.

         15                 My staff and I began to research this

         16  law that exacted such harsh penalties upon local

         17  storeowners for such flagrant violations of the law.

         18    The law states that the only information allowed

         19  to appear on the awning is the name of the business

         20  and its address.  Furthermore, the letter cannot be

         21  more than 12 inches high.  We met with the

         22  appropriate agency to find out that these

         23  violations, complaints were complaint driven.  If

         24  someone complains about your awning, an inspector

         25  checks it out, and if it violates the code, you get
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          2  a notice of violation.  If you have any of these

          3  violations on your current awning, and no one

          4  complains, you can just keep going along, running

          5  your business. Another such group of stores in my

          6  district, along Hillside Avenue between 256th Street

          7  and 257th Street, who complained that all except

          8  one, had received violations in a matter of hours

          9  from one inspector.  My staff went out to

         10  investigate.  One store, a pizza shop, had just put

         11  up its awning.  Another store, an Italian deli,

         12  listed its stock heroes and pasta, and a third was a

         13  hairdresser salon.  The only one not to receive a

         14  violation was the last store on the block, and

         15  Indian clothing store.  He saw what was happening to

         16  the other stores, and being resourceful, he placed a

         17  ladder in front of his building and with a box

         18  cutter, cut the sign off its frame.  When the

         19  inspector reached his store, it was violation free.

         20  I mentioned this to my colleagues at City Hall, and

         21  they told me of similar situations that were

         22  occurring in their districts, such as Jackson

         23  Heights, and Corona, where Council Member Monserrate

         24  is from.

         25                 Take a trip down Union Turnpike and
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          2  Utopia Parkway, you will find a group of stores that

          3  have banners over their front, advertising what they

          4  sell.  The whole row of stores appears to be in a

          5  twilight zone, you cannot tell whether they are

          6  going out of business or just like to hand up

          7  makeshift signs.  They were forced to remove their

          8  signs.  Yet, what is true of most of these stores is

          9  that business is hurting, and it is hurting, in

         10  part, to their inability to utilize these awning

         11  signs to tell the public they are open and have

         12  merchandise for sale.

         13                 It is, therefore, necessary that we

         14  take a common sense approach to this problem, not

         15  only facing the small business owners in my

         16  district, but all such entrepreneurs throughout the

         17  City facing similar penalties.  The law under which

         18  these storeowners are being penalized was adopted in

         19  1961, forty- two years ago.  I was born but I was

         20  only 5 years old at the time.  It is antiquated, and

         21  just as awning have changed, so must our approach to

         22  these violations.

         23                 I am most pleased to join together

         24  with my colleague, Council Member Monserrate, in

         25  addressing the problems being created by the current
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          2  legislation governing awning signs. Council Member

          3  Monserrate's Bill includes an effort to create a

          4  six- month moratorium on these awning violations.

          5  Such an approach is critical in that it will prevent

          6  the ongoing deluge of violations depending upon our

          7  City storeowners.  I will continue my efforts to

          8  enact into law Intro. No. 365, a Bill that I have

          9  already introduced that will expand the content

         10  legally permitted to appear on the awnings of any

         11  business.  This will include name, telephone,

         12  address, logo, hours of operation, merchandise, and

         13  in letters that are in excess of 12 inches.

         14                 The law now in effect was promulgated

         15  in 1961 to prevent the introduction of racial,

         16  sexual, and other offensive conduct, content.  Our

         17  society has moved beyond that point and it is now

         18  time for our legislation to make a similar move.

         19  When most of these awnings and canopies were in

         20  effect, in 1961, they were not the state- of- the-

         21  art signs that we see today on our Mom and Pop

         22  stores.  They were generally the awnings that were

         23  rolled out during the summer, and rolled back when

         24  it got cooler, and there were reasons for limiting

         25  them as temporary structures at that time.
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          2                 I ask you to join with Council Member

          3  Monserrate and myself in support of this

          4  legislation, and free our storeowners from the harsh

          5  penalties of this outdated law.  Thank you, Mr.

          6  Chairman.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council

          8  Member Weprin. We are also pleased to be joined by

          9  Council Member Mike McMahon from Staten Island, and

         10  finally I would like to invite Assistant

         11  Commissioner Robert Iulo from the Department of

         12  Buildings to testify.  Thank you for joining us this

         13  morning.

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER IULO:  Good

         15  morning Chairperson Liu and members of the

         16  Transportation Committee.  My name is Robert Iulo,

         17  and I am the Assistant Commissioner of Citywide

         18  Inspections at the Department of Buildings, and with

         19  me is the Chief of Staff, Stephen Kramer.  Thank you

         20  for the opportunity to testify in support of Intro.

         21  305- A.

         22                 Stated briefly, Intro. 305- A imposes

         23  a six- month moratorium on the imposition of

         24  penalties for violations written for awnings erected

         25  without a permit, and for awnings that violate the
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          2  Zoning Resolution's provisions concerning commercial

          3  copy or the height of lettering, except where public

          4  safety would be compromised.  Intro. 305- A was

          5  written in response to significant reservations

          6  raised by the Department regarding the original

          7  version of this legislation.  It is also the product

          8  of extensive discussion concerning the difficult

          9  issues surrounding the various regulations involving

         10  awning signage.

         11                 The Bill before us today strikes a

         12  balance between the interests of those concerned

         13  with, and those affected by the Zoning Resolution's

         14  various awning provisions.  In addition to the

         15  substantial community outreach that the Department

         16  has already performed, including meeting with

         17  several members of your constituency groups, and by

         18  the way, last week we also met with the Department

         19  of Small Business Services and a number of bid

         20  managers discussing this issue, the Department will

         21  during this six- month period, intensify our

         22  outreach efforts to meet with business and community

         23  groups to discuss awning regulations.

         24                 In addition, the Administration is

         25  drafting a proposed text change to the Zoning
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          2  Resolution, which will be subject to public review

          3  under the Charter; to address the problems posed by

          4  the current regulations.

          5                 Thank you for the opportunity to

          6  address this Bill.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very

          8  much, Assistant Commissioner, and I am pleased that

          9  the Council has been able to work with your

         10  Department and the Mayor's Office in putting

         11  together this legislation that will be, that I hope

         12  to pass this morning, and I think that that is the

         13  spirit of cooperation that we would like to continue

         14  on all fronts.

         15                 Are there any questions or comments

         16  from Council Members?  We have been joined by

         17  Committee Member Andrew Lanza from Staten Island.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Thank you,

         19  Mr. Chair.  I am just curious, in terms of, we are

         20  talking about a law that archived, a law that been

         21  in the book for a while and for a number of years,

         22  there were no enforcement of this law.  I am just

         23  curious as to what prompted the Department of

         24  Building to say we must now go and apply and enforce

         25  this particular law.  And from reading from the
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          2  papers, I read the statement from the Commissioner

          3  where it says that calls were made about complaints

          4  of violation, now is there any, do you keep track of

          5  the calls that come into the Department in reference

          6  to this particular law?

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER IULO:  Yes, we

          8  do.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  You do, and

         10  can you tell, last year, or the year before for the

         11  same period, did you receive the amount of call, or

         12  can you tell me why all of a sudden, did the

         13  complaints just started coming in?

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER IULO:  I

         15  cannot tell you why the complaints started

         16  increasing, for about the past five years, it has

         17  been going up every year.  We have never gone out

         18  and looked for violations of this type without a

         19  complaint, and as you say, over the past five years,

         20  and particularly this last year, the number of

         21  complaints have increased, and I could not say why.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  So, I mean,

         23  what are the basis of the complaint, are they

         24  called, too much letters, or too much signs?

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER IULO:  A lot
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          2  of the complaints, they do know the regulations, the

          3  Zoning Resolution is on- line, and just anyone can

          4  read it, and they complain about using terms like

          5  visual pollution and things like that, and permit

          6  issues also, these they can also check if the awning

          7  has a permit on- line.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Another

          9  question, the companies that made these signs, is

         10  there any communication between the Department of

         11  Building, the Department of Consumer Affair, that

         12  license these kinds of businesses or small business

         13  administration?

         14  Where they are informed that this regulation exists,

         15  in other words, if I am a small business owner

         16  putting up my first business for the first time, and

         17  I go to one of these companies that make the signs,

         18  and I tell them I want this sign, are those

         19  companies informed of the regulations of the City of

         20  New York?

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER IULO:  Here is

         22  what happens. We license sign hangers, but there are

         23  a lot of sign hangers out there who are not

         24  licensed, and those are probably the ones who do not

         25  deal with permit issues, and informing their
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          2  customers about the zoning regulations, but there

          3  are licensed sign hangers out there who know the

          4  regulations.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  So you

          6  suspect that the majority of those individuals that

          7  are making these signs are not licensed?

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER IULO:  That is

          9  what I suspect, yes.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, I am

         12  delighted that we are joined by Council Member Gale

         13  Brewer from Manhattan.  I have a question from

         14  Council Member Mike McMahon.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Thank you,

         16  Mr. Chairman, and with Council Member Reyna's

         17  indulgence, I will lean into the table here.

         18                 I want to commend you and Council

         19  Member Weprin and Council Member Monserrate for

         20  dealing with this issue, and I think it is very,

         21  very imperative.  I want to say that I share Council

         22  Member Martinez's skepticism about how these

         23  violations came to be, especially given the fact, I

         24  know in Staten Island that the awning sign has now

         25  really become the most common sign of any business,
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          2  certainly any new business that opens uses the

          3  awning sign, and most of the old businesses have

          4  adopted the awning sign.  So there is a whole

          5  industry out there, and I am sure you will agree

          6  that probably in 1961, that it was not used and now

          7  it is used to a point where it is quite clear that

          8  the law has to be amended, and there is no reason

          9  for that, and we will work hard to do that.  So I am

         10  just curious as to why tickets are not, I mean, you

         11  give tickets to those who have the signs on their

         12  stores, but what type of enforcement has been done

         13  against those who hang the signs?  I mean,

         14  certainly, the unlicensed sign hanger should be put

         15  out of business I would take it because, certainly,

         16  if I owned a store and I called up a signs operation

         17  and said I would like to put up an awning sign, I

         18  would have no idea that it would be illegal because

         19  everybody has one.  So if everybody's wearing a blue

         20  tie and I wear a blue tie, I assume that I can, I

         21  mean red today, and everybody's wearing a red tie, I

         22  assume that I can wear a red tie, so, I am curious

         23  why the DOB, see red is the tie of choice here, why

         24  it is that all the enforcement goes against the

         25  store owner and not the sign maker?
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER IULO:  I agree

          3  with what you are saying and we tried that once a

          4  few years ago.  We try to serve violations on the

          5  sign hanger themselves and we lost every one of them

          6  at a hearing because we did not see them do it.  Our

          7  inspectors can only write violations for what they

          8  see, and their case was that the sign could have

          9  been altered after they left, so we did try that,

         10  and we lost every time.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Well, I

         12  think that when we look at this law, we have to take

         13  that into consideration.  I just have one last

         14  question, some stores in my district have also

         15  received fines for traditional flat, fines I am

         16  sorry, for traditional flat signs.  What would be

         17  the reason for that and what is the policy on that,

         18  what are their limitations of the law, and why would

         19  they be given fines?

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER IULO:  Well

         21  those regulations vary by zoning district.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Could you

         23  talk closer?

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER IULO:  Sure,

         25  those regulations vary by zoning district, and there
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          2  is eight different levels of commercial district,

          3  and the regulations vary eight times.

          4                 On a flat sign, the you can say

          5  anything, there are no content limitations, but it

          6  is regulated by the surface area of the sign.  In

          7  certain districts, there is a multiplier that is

          8  used, let's say three, three times the width of the

          9  store fronts, so if the store is 10 feet wide, 3 X

         10  10 allows you 30 square feet of signage, it works

         11  that way.  And once you put that area up, you can

         12  say anything you want in it, so possibly, the sign

         13  was larger than that, I don't know.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  So, it is

         15  safe to assume that maybe the sign is too big.  I

         16  would just ask the Committee to look at that issue,

         17  as well, so that we can have conformity because this

         18  law that we are considering today, does not deal

         19  with that issue at all, is that correct?

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER IULO:  That is

         21  correct.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Thank you

         23  very much, and thank you, Mr. Chairman, thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council

         25  Member McMahon. And a question from Council Member
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          2  Gale Brewer.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Thank you,

          4  Mr. Chairman. Being the West Side, representing the

          5  West Side, of course the first letter I get is not

          6  from the merchants but from the Landmarks people,

          7  and they do not support this Bill.  My question is,

          8  what have you heard of anything, just in terms of

          9  thinking about either historic districts or the

         10  issues that a Landmark's Preservation Group might be

         11  interested in, is that something that has come up in

         12  your discussion, sort of design, et cetera?

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER IULO:  Well,

         14  the way I understand it in Landmark Districts, the

         15  signage and awnings are governed or regulated by the

         16  Landmarks Preservation Commission.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  So, this law

         18  would not apply or any law would not apply in

         19  Landmarks Districts?  Because I know, for instance,

         20  we have situations that stores that have put up

         21  awnings are not in conformance with Landmarks

         22  Districts, and then we are in the position of them

         23  taking them down and we sort of start from scratch.

         24  So that would not change.

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER IULO:  I
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          2  really cannot speak for the Landmarks Preservation

          3  Commission, but I think their regulations would not

          4  be affected by this.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay, and are

          6  there some situations in the City where, I mean, how

          7  would you think a balance would work between the

          8  issues where there might not be a Landmark

          9  Preservation District but where there would be some

         10  kind of balance between the need to continue

         11  advertisements so that people's businesses, self-

         12  sufficient, and profitable and at the same time, a

         13  conformity to the kinds of issues that a

         14  preservation group might be interested, and whether

         15  or not it is a Landmark District, is that something

         16  that an Art Commission might weigh in on or some

         17  other group?

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER IULO:  Well, I

         19  think the BIDs might be interested in that.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  The bids?

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER IULO:  They

         22  have been working with certain commercial strips and

         23  different business improvement districts to talk to

         24  them about their signage, and to even help them

         25  design signs that they felt was suitable for their
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          2  district.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay, and how

          4  did the selection of different ticketing take place,

          5  was that something that was, you may not know the

          6  answer to that, but does that something that has,

          7  obviously the papers indicate that there is a huge

          8  number increase, but is that something that you were

          9  aware of in advance?

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER IULO:  I have

         11  noticed an increase in complaints and that is the

         12  only thing that drives these inspections and

         13  violations, is complaints.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay, thank

         15  you Mr. Chairman.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council

         17  Member Brewer, and maybe I can just ask a clarifying

         18  question.  Does the Department of Buildings issue

         19  signs with regard to, I mean issue a violations or

         20  summonses based on violations in historic districts,

         21  or is that an action that would be taken by the

         22  Landmarks Preservation Commission?

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER IULO:  If

         24  something is in violation of the building code or

         25  zoning resolution, we can enforce it in the Landmark
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          2  Districts also.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  But a plan that is

          4  promulgated by the Landmarks Preservation

          5  Commission, is that considered part of the building

          6  code?

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER IULO:  No.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So it, I do not

          9  believe that that kind of summons would be - -

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER IULO:  It may

         11  be that the awning was in violation of their

         12  regulations and ours, as well, but we do not issue

         13  based on landmark law.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  Council

         15  Member Sara Gonzalez.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ:  Thank you,

         17  thank you Chairman Liu.

         18                 Before anything, I just want to

         19  request that I be a prime sponsor of this Bill,

         20  Intro.  But I do want to thank you, Commissioner

         21  Iulo, for your support in your presentation and what

         22  you read because in District 38 in Brooklyn where I

         23  am from, and where I represent, this is exactly what

         24  we need to be doing as legislators, is protecting

         25  the interest of our people in the City of New York.
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          2  And our small businesses are really affected already

          3  by the economy; so therefore, this is a real

          4  accountability, and also a beginning of some steps

          5  to make some changes.  So I thank you, and I thank

          6  all my colleagues, Councilman Weprin and Monserrate

          7  for all your work, thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, and

          9  please enter Council Member Sara Gonzalez into the

         10  record as a prime sponsor of Intro., Proposed Intro.

         11  305- A.  A question from Council Member Andrew

         12  Lanza.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA:  Good morning,

         14  Commissioner. Commissioner, do you or does your

         15  agency keep a record of the complaints lodged by the

         16  public?

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER IULO:  Yes, we

         18  do.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA:  By name?

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER IULO:  No.

         21  They are allowed to make anonymous complaints.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA:  In what form

         23  is that record kept, is it a log?

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER IULO:  It is

         25  in a, our business information system program, it is
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          2  registered under every address when the complaint

          3  was made.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA:  And so which

          5  information is logged?

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER IULO:  The

          7  address, what the complaint is, and than the

          8  disposition of the complaint.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA:  The time and

         10  date of the call?

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER IULO:  Yes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA:  What do you

         13  attribute the marked increase of or the, perhaps the

         14  realization of the public with respect to the

         15  intricacies of these laws?

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER IULO:  Well, I

         17  am just guessing now, but I think it might have

         18  something to do with the zoning resolution being on

         19  the internet, and everyone becoming familiar with

         20  it, and the ease of which you can make a complaint.

         21  You just call and give the address and state what

         22  the complaint is.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA:  Can you tell

         24  us the percentage increase in complaints that you

         25  have received this year, over the last year?  And
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          2  then the corresponding increase in fines, written by

          3  your agency?

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER IULO:  I could

          5  not tell you that off the top of my head, no.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA:  Could you get

          7  that to the Committee?

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER IULO:  Yes,

          9  sure.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA:  Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council

         12  Member Lanza. If there no further questions or

         13  comments or testimony about Proposed Intro. 305- A,

         14  at this time, we will proceed to a vote on Proposed

         15  Intro. No. 305- A before the Committee on

         16  Transportation. I would like to ask the Clerk to

         17  call the role and I recommend a yes vote by the

         18  Committee members

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Liu.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Addabbo.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  Mr.

         23  Chairman, may I be briefly excused to explain my

         24  vote?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Please do.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  Thank you,

          3  Mr. Chairman. I commend yourself, Council Members

          4  Monserrate, and Council Member Weprin for their work

          5  on this Intro., and as a sponsor of Intro. 305- A I

          6  do vote yes today, but not only for the storeowners

          7  and the business owners throughout this City but to

          8  promote a more practical, common sense, and updated

          9  approach to our store awnings throughout the City.

         10  Thank you.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Reyna.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  I would like

         13  to request permission to explain my vote.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Please do.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  I would like

         16  to just take the moment to say that the 6- month

         17  moratorium is appropriated at this time so that it

         18  gives us, as members of the City Council, an

         19  opportunity to go back and further review this

         20  zoning resolution that exists in the City of New

         21  York, to speak to our BIDs, our commercial strips,

         22  our storeowners, and small businesses that are being

         23  affected by this, if they are being affected at all.

         24    And I would like to request sponsorship of this

         25  Bill, and I vote in favor of the Bill.  Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council

          3  Member Reyna. Please add Council Member Reyna in the

          4  record as a sponsor of this Bill.

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Martinez.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Let me just

          7  be excused to explain my vote, Mr. Chair?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Please do.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Mr. Chair,

         10  I want to commend Council Member Monserrate and

         11  Council Member Weprin on their leadership in

         12  addressing this issue.  An issue that affect many of

         13  our communities, and an issue that also reflects the

         14  changing times in our City and in our communities

         15  where individuals need to be informed as to the

         16  services that the different businesses provide in

         17  our community.  It is not just enough to put the

         18  name of the corporation or to limit the size of the

         19  letters, or the amount of the letters on the signs.

         20  Our communities have change, our communities need to

         21  reflect those changes, and individuals need to be

         22  informed as to the services that are available in

         23  our community, either by non- profit organization or

         24  for- profit organization.

         25                 I myself have awning on my office in
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          2  Washington Heights, and in that sign I also provide

          3  and made the services that are available in my

          4  office, from immigration services to notary public

          5  to translation  of document, it is all listed in my

          6  sign because individuals need to be informed, and I

          7  proudly vote aye and not only do I support the

          8  moratorium, but I think that this Committee and this

          9  Council needs to move forward in addressing the

         10  issue of getting rid of the archaic law.  I proudly

         11  vote aye.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Koppell.

         14  COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  May I be excused from

         15  voting for a moment to explain my vote?

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Please do.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Thank you,

         18  Mr. Chair.  I think this reminds me, I think it was

         19  Charles Dickens, I do not want to misquote, who in

         20  one of his well known novels has one of the

         21  characters say, the law is an ass, I hate to say

         22  that as a lawyer, but in some instances,

         23  unfortunately, it is appropriate, and this seems to

         24  be one of those instances.  The fact that you cannot

         25  put a bagel on the awning of a bagel store, or put
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          2  the times of opening and closing just makes no sense

          3  at all, so Mr. Chairman, I would urge that we

          4  quickly act to vastly amend this law.  I am not sure

          5  whether it might not be entirely repealed, although,

          6  I gather that at some time people put obnoxious

          7  words on the awnings and the only way to deal with

          8  that was to restrict what could be put there.  We do

          9  not want to go back to that time either, but I

         10  certainly thing that a great liberalization of what

         11  is permitted on awnings is urgently required.  So I

         12  hope we will work and I pledge to you to work with

         13  the Committee to come up with something that makes

         14  some sense so we do not need to be embarrassed.

         15                 I would also urge, if I take this

         16  moment, I do not know if the City's representatives

         17  are still here, but I would urge that if this

         18  passes, that people who received summonses of late,

         19  and who's cases are not yet adjudicated, I realize

         20  we are not effecting them as a legal matter, but I

         21  would urge that the City would think long, and hard

         22  before imposing fines on people who have been

         23  reasonably cited.  I withdraw my request, and vote

         24  in the affirmative.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, before
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          2  we proceed with the vote, I just want to welcome

          3  potential future members of the City Council, they

          4  are from P.S. 176 in Cambria Heights, and they are

          5  from the home of Council Member James Sanders, Jr.,

          6  welcome.

          7  Will the clerk continue with the role?

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Sanders.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS:  Mr. Chair,

         10  may I explain my vote?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Please do.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS:  As a prime

         13  sponsor of this Bill, I want to commend Council

         14  Members Monserrate and Council Member Weprin for

         15  recognizing the need for the City to get into the

         16  21st Century, and I certainly vote yes for this.

         17                 I also want to give an official

         18  shout- out to P.S. 176, and to Greta Davis

         19  (phonetic) and Delray Linton (phonetic). Thank you

         20  very much, shout out.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.

         22                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Sears.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Permission to

         24  explain my vote, Mr. Chairman?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Please do.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you.  I

          3  need to preface my words be stating that I have the

          4  greatest respect for the Chair's and for members of

          5  this Committee, and anyone who takes the initiative

          6  as a sponsors of this Bill, to do something that

          7  they believe is the right thing to do, I respect

          8  that.

          9                 I have to explain why I vote no for

         10  this Bill, and that is in a few areas.  One is that

         11  we must all remember how the complaints are received

         12  by the Buildings Department, the Buildings

         13  Department does not have anyone that walks the

         14  streets and looks for violations.  The complaints

         15  are driven by complaints from the Community Boards,

         16  from the Civic Associations, from individuals who

         17  are members of those groups, some may be filed

         18  individually, and then the organizations and the

         19  Community Boards respond appropriately.

         20                 Summonses have been given, they

         21  certainly have been given in the 25th Council

         22  District, and I believe they have been given

         23  elsewhere.  There has been an enforcement of the

         24  law.  I do not believe that for the problems that

         25  are being discussed today, something that should go
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          2  through an amended, legislative process now.  I

          3  believe that they can be worked internally, with the

          4  agencies, and if the agencies have not responded,

          5  the Council is a very strong body, and this

          6  Committee and Committee's are very strong, and there

          7  should be a unity in looking at the wrong's that

          8  exist, and to do that.

          9                 The last time we had a hearing, I had

         10  proposed to the Buildings Department and to DOT, who

         11  was here at that time, that everyone applies to

         12  Consumer Affairs for their permits, for licenses and

         13  so on, and that this should be an inter- agency

         14  effort to distribute the information that so few

         15  people have had on an ongoing basis.  I do not

         16  believe that they have even started to do that.

         17  That is something that this Committee could work

         18  very strongly to do.  The Board of Health issues

         19  enormous, enormous violations throughout this City,

         20  even so much as seeing a little fly.  We would not

         21  put a moratorium on that.  Many of these awnings are

         22  outrageous, there are pigeon droppings on them, the

         23  30- year awnings have not been washed, they are torn

         24  away, and I believe that the wrongs that we are all

         25  talking about should be corrected internally with
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          2  these agencies, and make the agencies work with the

          3  Council to do that.  After that, if that law has to

          4  be amended, what it will do would be to incorporate

          5  hearing from the Community Boards, hearing from the

          6  Civic Associations, so that what comes in place is

          7  something that is manageable.  The dollars of not

          8  collecting the fines are so minuscule, I do not even

          9  want to address that because my vote no is not a

         10  punitive vote, and it is not directed to punish

         11  merchants.  It is because I do believe that we do

         12  not legislate, and legislate, and legislate to

         13  correct wrongs when there are other alternatives to

         14  do it.

         15                 So, respectfully to the Committee and

         16  my colleagues, I vote no, because I do believe there

         17  are other avenue's to do that.  Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gonzales.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALES:  Yes, aye.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Lanza.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA:  Permission to

         23  explain my vote.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Please do.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA:  Thank you, Mr.
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          2  Chairman. First I would like to thank Councilman

          3  Monserrate, Councilman Weprin, and you, Mr. Chair

          4  for your leadership on this issue.

          5                 It has been said that they best way

          6  to get rid of a bad law is to enforce it.  I would

          7  suggest then that it follows that a better way to

          8  get rid of a bad law is to enforce it arbitrarily

          9  which seems to be the case here, and I proudly vote

         10  aye.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK:  By a vote of 8 in the

         12  affirmative, 1 in the negative, and no abstentions,

         13  the item is adopted, Council members please sign the

         14  Committee reports, thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Being that there is

         16  no other testimony on this Bill or any other

         17  comments for today, this meeting of the

         18  Transportation Committee is adjourned.

         19                 (Hearing adjourned at 11:40 a.m.)
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